
 

 
 

NOTICE OF  
STANDNG COMMITTEE  

MEETINGS 
 

Scheduled for  
Tuesday, December 11, 2018,  

beginning at 6:30 p.m. in   
 

Council Chambers 
Village Hall of Tinley Park  
16250 S. Oak Park Avenue 

Tinley Park, Illinois 
 

 
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 

A copy of the agendas for these meetings is attached hereto. 
 
 
 
Kristin A. Thirion 
Clerk 
Village of Tinley Park  

 

 



 
NOTICE OF A MEETING 

OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 

 
 
Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Community Development Committee of the Village 
of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, will begin at 6:30 p.m. on Tuesday, December 
11, 2018, in Council Chambers at the Village Hall of Tinley Park, 16250 S. Oak Park Avenue, 
Tinley Park, Illinois.    
 

 
1. OPEN THE MEETING.  

 
2. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON SEPTEMBER 11, 2018. 
 

3. DISCUSS SHORT TERM VACATION RENTALS – TEXT AMENDMENT. 
 

4. DISCUSS CHANGE OF USE/OWNERSHIP POLICY. 
 

5. RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC. 
 

 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

KRISTIN A. THIRION 
VILLAGE CLERK 



 

MINUTES 
Meeting of the Community Development Committee 

 September 11, 2018 - 6:30 p.m. 
Village Hall of Tinley Park – Council Chambers 

16250 S. Oak Park Avenue 
Tinley Park, IL 60477 

 
Members Present:  B. Younker, Acting Chairman 
    W. Brady, Village Trustee 
         
Members Absent:  M. Glotz, Chairman 
        
Other Board Members Present: None    
 `    
Staff Present:   D. Niemeyer, Village Manager 
    P. Carr, Assistant Village Manager 
    B. Bettenhausen, Village Treasurer 
    M. Walsh, Police Chief 
    C. Faricelli, Deputy Police Chief 
    S. Klotz, Deputy Fire Chief/Suppression 
    J. Urbanski, Assistant Public Works Director 
    P. Connelly, Village Attorney 
    L. Valley, Executive Assistant to the Manager and Trustees 
    L. Godette, Deputy Village Clerk 
    L. Carollo, Commission/Committee Secretary 
      
Item #1 - The Community Development Committee Meeting was called to order at 6:54 p.m. 
 
Item #2 – CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON JULY 10, 2018 – Motion was made by 
Acting Chairman Younker, seconded by Trustee Brady, to approve the minutes of the Community 
Development Committee meeting held on July 10, 2018.  Vote by voice call.  Acting Chairman 
Younker declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #3 – DISCUSS LICENSE AGREEMENT - BANGING GAVEL - The Village entered into an 
incentive agreement with Banging Gavel, LLC (BG) in 2017, in order to rehabilitate and repurpose the 
Vogt historical building into a modern dining and drink establishment.  As part of the agreement, the 
Village and BG exchanged certain property in order to better meet needs on the site.  However, during 
the site design phase of the project, BG informed the Village certain site improvements would encroach 
onto Village property.  Encroachments include an accessibility ramp, garbage enclosure and a grade 
level deck.  Therefore, a license agreement must be executed by BG in order to maintain these 
encroachments onto Village property.  The short-term license agreement of 5 years or less fully 
indemnifies and insures the Village for any incidents caused or occurring on Village property due to the 
encroachments.  The plan eventually would be to sell BG these site encroachments within 5 years or 
less.  The Community Development Committee was provided a copy of the Revocable Encroachment 
License Agreement for further review and consideration.       
 
Motion was made by Acting Chairman Younker, seconded by Trustee Brady, to recommend License 
Agreement - Banging Gavel be placed on the agenda for the next Village Board meeting for approval.  
Vote by voice.  Acting Chairman Younker declared the motion carried.  
 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Item #4 – RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC - Diane Galante requested clarification on 
the license agreement with Banging Gavel and P. Connelly, Village Attorney explained the license 
agreement in detail.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion was made by Acting Chairman Younker, seconded by Trustee Brady, to adjourn this meeting of 
the Community Development Committee.  Vote by voice call.  Acting Chairman Younker declared the 
motion carried and adjourned the meeting at 6:58 p.m. 
 
lc 
 
 







































































































































5-9-4. - APPUCATION; NOTICE; STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES; RENEWAL; FEES.

(A) Applications. A property owner who seeks a vacation rental license pursuant to this Chapter shall
submit a written application that contains all information required for a registration statement
pursuant to Chapter 8 of this Title.

(8) Notice. Each application shall be accompanied by proof the applicant mailed notice thereof to all
owners, whose addresses appear on the current tax assessment list, of real property located within a
radius of two hundred fifty feet (250) of the subject property, inclusive of public streets, alleys and
other public ways. The notice shall contain the applicant’s name, the address of the subject property,
the matter under consideration, and the date, time, and location of the relevant meeting of the
Planning and Development Committee.

(C) Standards arid Procedures for License ApprovaL The Planning and Development Committee will
review all applications for vacation rentals and will report to the City Council upon each application
with respect to the standards set forth below. The City Council after receiving said report, may refer
the application back to that body br additional review, or, by motion, may approve, approve with
conditions, or disapprove, an application for a vacation rental license, upon findings of fact with
respect to each of the standards set forth below:

1. The proposed vacation rental will not cause a negative cumulative effect when its effect is
considered in conjunction with the effect of other vacation rentals in the immediate
neighborhood.

2. The vacation rental will not have a substantial adverse impact on the use, enjoyment, or
property values of adjoining properties.

3. The proposed vacation rental will comply with all the rules and regulations contained herein.

4. The proposed vacation rental is not likely to have an adverse effect upon the public health,
welfare, or safety.

Regardless of its finding on any or all of the foregoing standards, the City Council may deny a
vacation rental license upon a finding that such denial is in the public interest.

(D) RenewaL If a vacation rental license was issued for the prior year, the approval for a renewal license
shall be obtained from the City Manager or his/her designee, provided the previously-issued license
was not revoked or suspended, and the vacation rental did not receive citation(s) from any City
Inspector or Police Officer during said prior calendar year. Every renewal application shall satisfy all
requirements set forth in Section 4 of this Chapter.

(E) License Fee, The annual fee for a license issued pursuant to this Chapter shall be fifty dollars
($50.00).

(Ord. No. 50-0-13, § 2,6-10-2013)

5-9-S. - REQUIREMENTS AND STANDARDS.

(A) No vacation rental operator shall:

1. Rent or lease any vacation rental for any period of time shorter than twenty-four (24)
consecutive hours;

2. Rent or lease any vacation rental more than once within any consecutive twenty-four-hour
period measured from the commencement of one rental to the commencement of the next;

3. Advertise an hourly rate or any other rate for a vacation rental based on a rental period of fewer
than twenty-four (24) consecutive hours; and/or

4. Serve or otherwise provide any food or beverage to any guest.

Page 2



5. Cause or permit, by action or failure to act, the vacation rental or its use to suffer from and/or
create any violation of the following portions of the City Code: Title 4, “Building Regulations”;
Title 5, “Housing Regulations”; Title 6, “Zoning”; Title 8, “Health and Sanitation”; or Title 9,
“Public Safety.”

(B) Every vacation rental shall be subject to inspection by staff members of the City’s Fire, Health, and
Community and Economic Development Departments.

(C) Every vacation rental operator shall keep a register in which shall be entered the name of every
guest and hislher arrival and departure dates. The operator shall make said register freely accessible
to any officer of the CiWs Police, Fire, Health, and/or Community and Economic Development
Departments.

(0) Every vacation rental operator shall post, in a conspicuous place within the vacation rental, the name
and telephone number of the operator’s authorized agent identified pursuant to Code Section 5-8-
3(A)2.

(E) Any kitchen in a vacation rental shall be cleaned and sanitized between guests and all food and
beverages shall be discarded. All dishes, utensils, pots, pans and other cooking utensils shall be
cleaned and sanitized between guests.

(F) The operator of every vacation rental shall change supplied bed linens and towels therein at least
once each week, and prior to the letting of any room to any new guest. The operator shall be
responsible for the maintenance of all supplied bedding in a clean and sanitary manner.

(Ord. No. 50-0-13, § 2,6-10-2013)

5-9-6. - PENALTY.

(A) Any owner, tenant or other person who shall be found to have violated any of the provisions of this
Chapter shall be guilty of an offense punishable as follows:

1. The fine for a first violation is two hundred dollars ($200.00).

2. The fine for a second violation is five hundred dollars ($500.00).

3. The fine for a third or subsequent violation is seven hundred fifty dollars ($750.00).

(B) Each day a provision of this Chapter is found to have been violated constitutes a separate violation
subject to the fine schedule set forth in this Section.

(C) Any fines shall be debts due and owing to the City that the City may collect by any means allowed by
law, including, but not limited to, filing a lien against the vacation rental or the premises containing
the vacation rental.

(D) The fines provided for herein shall not be construed as limiting the power of a court of competent
jurisdiction or an administrative hearing officer to impose other penalties and/or remedies as
provided for by applicable legislation. In addition, a licensee found to have violated any provision of
this Chapter may be subject to license revocation, suspension, or nonrenewal.

(Ord. No. 50-0-13, § 2,6-10-2013)

5-9-7. - REVOCATION; SUSPENSION; PROCEDURES.

(A) The City Manager may revoke or suspend a license issued pursuant to the terms of this Chapter for
any of the following reasons:

1. If the owner of the relevant vacation rental or his/her agent violates any of the terms of this
Chapter

Page 3



2. If the owner of the vacation rental or his/her agent is deemed to have maintained a nuisance
premises therein, in violation of Section 9-5-4 of this Code;

3. If, pursuant to Title 4, Chapter 16 of the City Code, the Director of Community and Economic
Development (‘Director) deems the vacation rental, or the premises wherein it is located, to be
a vacant building, as defined therein: and/or

4. If the City or other governmental agency condemns the vacation rental or the premises wherein
it is located.

(B) Not less than fourteen (14) business days prior to a revocation hearing for a license issued pursuant
to the terms of this Chapter, the Director shall send, via First Class U.S. mail, a notice of revocation
hearing to the owner or hislher authorized agent at the address provided on the most recent license
application. Notice shall be sufficient if sent to the address of the authorized agent indicated on the
license application. Said notice shall include the following:
1. Description of the vacation rental, sufficient for identification;
2. A statement that the license is subject to revocation;

3. A statement of the reasons for the revocation;
4. The date and time upon which a revocation hearing shall occur; and
5. The location for said revocation hearing.

(C) If the Director certifies to the City Manager that he/she has reason to believe that immediate
suspension of the license is necessary to prevent the threat of immediate harm to the community,
the City Manager may, upon the issuance of a written order stating the reason for such conclusion
and without notice or hearing, order the license suspended for not more than seven (7) days. The
City Manager may extend the suspension during the pendency of a hearing upon a written
determination that doing so is necessary to prevent the aforesaid harm to the community.

(D) Hearings shall be conducted by the City Manager in accordance with procedures drafted by the
Corporation Counsel.

(E) Within ten (10) business days after the close of the hearing, the City Manager shall issue a written
decision that shall constitute a final determination for purposes of judicial review pursuant to the
Illinois Administrative Review Law, 735 ILCS 5/3-101 et seq., as amended. In reaching a decision,
the City Manager may consider any of the following:

1. The nature of the violation;

2. The nature and extent of the harm caused by the licensee’s action or failure to act;

3. The factual situation and circumstances surrounding the violation;

4. Whether or not the action or failure to act was willful;

5. The record of the licensee with respect to violations.

(F) A licensee whose license has been revoked shall not be eligible to reappty for a new license.

(Ord. No. 50-0-13, § 2,6-10-2013)

-

Page4



Department of Health & Human Services
2100 Ridge Avenue

Evanston, illInois 60201-2798
.,_,,

__.- Telephone: 847/4484311
Cit FAX: 847-445-8134

EvaAston www.cityofevanston.org
VACATION RENTAL LICENSE APPLICATION

A property owner who seeks a Vacation Rental License shall submit a written application
that contains all of the information requested below (City Code §5-9-4-(A), as amended).

All vacation rentals are for a duration of less than 30 consecutive days.

PLEASE FILL IN ALL SECTIONS. IF APPROPRIATE, MARK “NOT APPLICABLE” OR “NIA.”
Dwelling Unit Address:

PIN:____________________________ Total # of dwelling units In the building:_______________________

Please provide a short summary explaining how the rental will operate (how often, how many rooms, etc.)

‘I. Unit Owners (If a partnership, corporation, or other entity, include its name and the name of the responsible party):

Names:

Address including City, State, Zip Code:__________________________________________________________________________

Phone(s):___________________________________ Email address(es):

2. Name of natural person twenty-one (21) years of age or older, designated by the owner as the authorizedagent for receiving notices of city code violations and for receiving process, in any court proceeding or
administrative enforcement proceeding, on behalf of such owner in connection with the enforcement of this code. The
foregoing notwithstanding, this person may be between eighteen (18) and twenty-one (21) years of age provided that theapplicant attaches, to this form, proof that said person has a valid realtor’s license issued pursuant to the Illinois Real
Estate License Act, 225 ILCS 454/1-1 et seq., as amended. This person must maintain an office in Cook County, Illinois,
or must actually reside within Cook County, Illinois. An owner who is a natural person and who meets the requirements
of this subsection as to location of residence or office may designate himself/herself as agent:

Name of Designated Agent for above purpose:
..

Address including City State ZIP
. -

Phone(s)

______________________________

Email address

___________________________________________

3. Name of owner’s agent for the purpose of managing, controlling or collecting rents1 and any other person who
is not an owner but who controls such dwelling unit, if any:

Name of Designated Agent for above purpose:

Address, including City, State, ZIP:_________________________________________________________________________

Phone(s):___________________________________ Email address:_________________________________________________

Page 1



4. Name of each company that provides an insurance policy for the dwelling unit:

Address, including City, State, ZIP:_________________________________________________________________________

Phone(s):________________________________ Email address:______________________________________________

Inspection:

A pre- approval licensing inspection for life and safety matters of the dwelling is required. All issues found during the
inspection must be corrected before the issuance of a license.

Notice

Each applicant must submit prior to the Planning and Development Committee, P&D, proof of mailed notices to all owners
whose addresses appear on the current tax assessment list of real estate property located within radius of 250 feet of the
subject property, inclusive of public streets, alleys and other public ways.

The notice must include applicant’s name, the address of the subject property, the matter under consideration, and the
date, time and location of the meeting of the Planning and Development Committee.

You will be informed by the Health Department when to distribute the notices after the P & D Committee and City Council
meeting date for your application is confirmed.

Approval:

Each application must be reviewed by P & D Committee and City Council before approval is granted.

Please submit completed application and required documents to: Licensing, Dept. of Health & Human Services
2100 Ridge Ave., Evanston, IL 60201 or email to: egoldencityofevanston.org

Page j 2



• : PETERSON
flU JOHNSON
IRS MURRAY

ATTORNEY- CLIENT PRIVILEGED
MEMORANDUM

TO: The Village of Tinley Park

FROM: PJM

DATE: September 7, 2018

SUBJECT: Proposes Legislation regulating short-term/vacation rentals

The purpose of this memo is to advise the Village of Tinley Park (“Village”) on proposed
legislation regulating short-term/vacation rentals.

Ouestions Presented:

1. How can the Village regulate short-term/vacation rentals?

Short Answer

I. The Village may enact legislation providing licensing, registration, inspection, and taxing
requirements for short-term/vacation rentals.

Discussion

The Village like municipalities across Illinois have expressed interest in regulating short
term/vacation rentals (“rental” or “rentals”). Accordingly, the Village has asked us how’ they may
control and regulate the growth and use of rentals in the community. In response, we have drafted
legislation that provides an effective structure to regulate the operation of the rentals market. This
legislation establishes the following regulations: (1) defines short-term/vacation rentals, (2)
provides a licensing structure, (3) application procedures, (4) requirements for operation, (5)
penalties for violations, and (6) methods for revocation and suspension of licenses.

The definition provided for rentals offers a broad scope that will include all applicable
variations of units available on websites such as Airhnb””. Additionally, this definition will
provide residents with a reasonable understanding of the type of rentals the Village intends to cover
by enacting this legislation.

The Village has expressed interest in a licensing structure for rentals. The licensing
structure provided in the proposed legislation makes it unlawful to operate rentals without a



qualifying license. Further, a licensee may only obtain one license for one year on a residential
structure, and the license will be valid for only a twelve (12) month period. These licensing
requirements are similar to other business licensing requirements, and therefore will not be overly
burdensome to the residents desiring to operate rentals in the Village.

The application procedure section provided requires applicants to submit sufficient
information to the Village to establish that property owners are aware of the regulations associated
with operating rentals. Included in the application materials are notice requirements providing that
applicants should send notice to neighboring properties, special use requirements, residency
requirements. and license approval procedures. As such, the notice and residency requirements
will place geographic limitations on the areas that will be available for rentals. In addition, this
section provides that the Village will be able to tax the rentals according to their local hotel and
motel taxing rates. Therefore, this structure will provide the Village with adequate information to
determine whether an applicant will operate consistent with the Code.

During the owner’s operation of the rental, he or she will be required to adhere to ongoing
obligations under the Code. These obligations include advertising regulations, food and beverage
restrictions, and maintenance of a registry of guests who use and occupy the rentals. Also included
in this section is an inspection requirement that the Village has expressed interest in implementing
to ensure the safe and compliant operation of rentals. Accordingly, these restrictions are merely a
minimum standard, and all other applicable sections of the Code and any other restrictions may be
enforced or added.

The last two sections of the legislation describe the consequences associated with violating
the Code. The penalties section provides fines associated with violations of this legislation. The
following section provides a procedure for revocation and suspension of licenses. As such, it will
be important to provide an adjudicatory process following revocation or suspension of licenses to
limit any liability associated with a deprivation of due process rights. Consequently, these
restrictions are deterrents to ensure that owners of rentals will adhere to the requirements provided
in this legislation.

Conclusion

In conclusion, this proposed legislation provides a regulatory structure for the Village to
implement to regulate the rentals market within the community. Therefore, this legislation ensures
adequate licensing and application procedures, operation instructions., and a clear adjudication
structure. The Village should view this proposed legislation as suggestive, and provide further
guidance on structure related to fine amounts, administrative procedures, and preferences on
distances and time requirements.

2



SHORT-TERMJVACATION RENTAL PROPOSED LEGISLATION

1. DEFINITIONS.

a. SHORT-TERM/VACATION RENTAL:
i. A single room, dwelling unit, an allocated space, or a portion thereof with

the primary structure in a residential zoning district offered for rent for a
period shor er than thirty (30) consecutive days to any person other than a
member of the owner’s family. The term “short-term/vacation rental” shall
not include hotels, motels, or lodging establishments licensed pursuant to
[Village Code].

b. FAMILY:
i. Type (A) Family: One (1) or more persons related by blood, marriage, or

adoption living together as a single housekeeping unit in a dwelling unit.
ii. Type (B) Family: Two (2) unrelated persons and their children living

together as a single housekeeping unit in a dwelling unit.
iii. Type (C) Family: A group of not more than three (3) unrelated persons

living together as a single housekeeping unit in a dwelling unit.
iv. Type (D) Family: A group of two (2) or more persons containing within it

one (1) or more families, as defined in Subsections (I) and (2) of this
definition, including a husband and wife married to one another and their
children, as well as adults, living together in a dwelling unit as a single
houseFeeping unit and management, in premises in which the adult
occupants are affiliated with a bona tide not-for-profit-corporation
organized for religious or charitable purposes chartered by the state of
Illinois.

“Family” shall not be construed to mean a club, a lodge or a fraternity/sorority house.

2. LICENSES REQUIREDZ LICENSE TERM; EXEMPTIONS.

a. It shall be unlawful to operate a short-termlvacation rental, offer for rent, or
advertise for rent a short-termlvacation rental within the Village of Oak Lawn
without a current, valid license issued pursuant to the terms of this Chapter.

b. Each license issued shall be valid for one (1) year, and subject to renewal.
c. Subsection (A) of this Section notwithstanding, no license shall be required to

operate a short-term/vacation rental no more than one (1) rental period per
dwelling unit per twelve-month period for:

i. Any single room or dwelling unit;
ii. A rental agreement executed pursuant to or in conjunction with a contract

to sell the dwelling unit containing the vacation rental;
iii. Vacation rental guest(s) who is/are displaced from his/her/their own

dwelling unit so that it may be renovated and/or repaired:
iv An owner who will suffer demonstrated hardship.

3



3. APPLICATION; NOTICE; STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES; RENEWAL;
FEES.

a. Applications. A property owner who seeks a vacation rental license pursuant to
this Chapter shall submit a written application that contains all information
required for a registration statement pursuant to this Chapter.

b. Notice. Each application shall be accompanied by proof of the applicant mailed
notice thereof to all owners, whose addresses appear on the current tax assessment
list, or real property located within a radius of [three hundred feet (300’)j of the
subject property, inclusive of public streets, alleys and other public ways. The
notice shall contain the applicant’s name, the address of the subject property, the
matter under consideration, date and time, and location of the relevant meeting of
the [Planning and Development Committee], and that the applicant intends to seek
a vacation rental license from the Village of Oak Lawn.

c. Special Use. No special use permit for a short-term/vacation rental will be granted
for any zoning lot located within [1,000 feet] of any other zoning lot on which
operates any other short-term rental for which a special use permit has been
granted.

d. Primary Residence. The short-term/vacation rental shall be the owner’s primary
residence.

e. Standards and Procedures for License Approval. The [Code enforcement officel
will review all applications for vacation rentals and will report to the Village
Board upon each application with respect to the standards set forth below. The
Village Board after receiving said report, may refer the application back to that
body for additional review, or, by motion, may approve, approve with conditions,
or disapprove, an application for a vacation rental license, upon findings of fact
with respect to each of the standards set forth below:

i. The proposed short-term/vacation rental will not cause a negative
cumulative effect when its effect is considered in conjunction with the
effect of other vacation rentals in the immediate neighborhood.

ii. The vacation rental will not have a substantial adverse impact on the use,
enjoyment, or property values of adjoining properties.

iii. The proposed vacation rental will comply with all the rules and
regulations contained herein.

iv. The proposed short-term/vacation rental is not likely to have an adverse
effect upon the public health, welfare, or safety.

v. The proposed short-term/vacation rental will otherwise be in the public
interest.

vi. Any short-term/vacation rental shall comply with the following criteria:
1. No rental or advertisement for rental for a period of time shorter

than [twenty-four (24) hours]

4



2. No rental may provide for food or beverage to any guests with the
exception of pre-packaged food and drink.

3. No more than one (I) rental at a specific location during the one-
year period commencing on the date a license is issued.

4. Any rental shall be subject to the hotel and motel tax set forth in
the Village Code, as may be amended from time to time.

E Renewal. If a vacation rental license was issued for the prior year, the approval
for a renewal license shall be obtained from the Village Clerk or his/her designee,
provided the previously issued license was not revoked or suspended. and the
vacation rental did not receive citation(s) from any Village Inspector or Police
Officer during said prior calendar year. Every renewal application shall satisfy all
requirements set forth in Section 3 and 4 of this Ordinance.

g. License Fee, The annual fee for a license issued pursuant to this Ordinance shall
be [fifty dollars ($50.00)].

Regardless of its findings on any or all of the foregoing standards, the Village Board may deny a
vacation rental license upon a finding that such denial is in the public interest.

4. REQUIREMENTS AND STANDARDS.

a. No vacation rental owner shall:
i. Rent or lease any vacation rental for any period of time shorter than

[twenty-four (24) consecutive hours];
ii. Rent or lease any vacation rental more than once within any consecutive

[twenty-four-hour period] measured from the commencement of one rental
to the commencement of the next;

iii. Advertise an hourly rate or any other rate for a vacation rental based on a
rental period of fewer than [twenty-four (24) consecutive hours]; and/or

iv. Serve or otherwise provide any food or beverage to any guest;
v. Cause or permit, by action or failure to act, the vacation rental or its use to

suffer from and/or create any violation of the following provisions of the
Village Code: [Code Provision Citation]

b. Every vacation rental shall he subject to inspection by staff members of the
Village’s [Fire and Code Enforcement Deparments].

c. Every vacation rental owner shall keep a register in which shall be entered the
name of every guest and his/her arrival and departure dates. The owner shall make
said register freely accessible to any officer of the Villagç’s [Police, Fire, and/or
Code Enforcement Departments].

d. Every vacation rental owner shall post, in a conspicuous place within the vacation
rental. the name and telephone number of the owner’s authorized agent.

e. No sleeping room shall serve more than two adults per night.
F. Each property used for short-term/vacation rental must have at least one

accessible bedroom available for rent that complies with Section 400.320(gh5)

5



and (9) of the Illinois Accessibility Code, irrespective of whether the Illinois
Accessibility Code would otherwise apply to the short-termlvacation rental.

g. Any kitchen rental shall be cleaned and sanitized between guests and all food and
beverages shall be discarded. All dishes, utensils, pots, pans and other cooking
utensils shall be cleaned arid sanitized between guests.

Ii. The owner of every vacation rental shall change supplied bed linens and towels
therein at least once each week and prior to the renting of any room to any guest.
The owner shall he responsible for the maintenance of all supplied bedding in a
clean and sanitary manner.

i. The owner must maintain at all times when renting out the property as a short-
term/vacation rental a general liability insurance policy in the amount of
$ 1.000,000.00 per occurrence and a minimum of $2,000,000.00 per aggregate.
The owner must provide the village with proof of such policy upon request.

The conditions and restrictions contained in this section, applicable to short-termlvacation rentals
shall be interpreted as minimum standards, and shall be in addition to any other applicable
Village ordinances and requirements that apply to short-Eermlvacation rentals or the properties on
which they are located.

5. PENALTY.

a. Any owner, tenant or other person who shall he found to have violated any of the
provisions of this Ordinance shall be guilty of an offense punishable as follows:

i. [The fine for a first violation is two hundred dollars ($200.00).]
ii. [The fine for a second violation is five hundred dollars ($500.00).]

iii. [The tine for a third or subsequent violation is seven hundred fifty dollars
($750.00).J

b. Each day a provision of this Ordinance is found to have been violated constitutes
a separate violation subject to the fine schedule set forth herein.

c. Any fines shall be debts due and owing to the Village that the Village may collect
by any means allowed by law, including, hut not limited to, filing a lien against
the vacation rental or the premises containing the vacation rental.

d. The fines provided for herein shall not be construed as limiting the power of a
court of competent jurisdiction or an administrative hearing officer to impose
other penalties and/or remedies as provided for by applicable legislation. In
addition, a license found to have violated any provision of this Ordinance may be
subject to license revocation, suspension, or non-renewal.

6. REVOCATION; SUSPENSION; PROCEDURES.

a. The Village Manager may revoke or suspend a license issued pursuant to the
terms of this Ordinance for any of the following reasons:

i. If the owner of the relevant vacation rental or his/her agent violates any of
the terms of this Ordinance.

6



ii. If the owner of the vacation rental or his/her agent is deemed to have
maintained a nuisance premises therein, in violation of the Village of Oak
Lawn Village Code;

iii. If the Village Manager deems the vacation rental, or the premises wherein
it is located, to be a vacant building, as defined therein; and/or

iv. If the city or other governmental agency condemns the vacation rental or
the premises wherein it is located.

b. Not less than [fourteen (14)1 business days prior to a revocation hearing for a
license issued pursuant to the terms of this Ordinance, the Village Manager shalL
send, via First Class U.S. mail, a notice of revocation hearing to the owner and
his/her authorized agent at the address provided on the most recent license
application. Notice shall be sufficient if sent to the address of the authorized agent
indicated on the license application. Said notice shall include the following:

i. [Description of the vacation rental, sufficient for identification:]
ii. [A statemen that the license is subject to revocation;]

iii. [A statement of the reasons for the revocation;]
iv. [The date and time upon which a revocation hearing shall occur; and]
v. [The location for said revocation hearing.]

c. If the Village Manager has reason to believe that immediate suspension of the
license is necessary to prevent the threat of immediate harm to the Village or the
neighborhood, the Village Manager may. upon the issuance of a written order
stating the reason for such conclusion and without notice or hearing, order the
license suspended for not more than [seven (1) days]. The Village Manager may
extend the suspension during the pendency of a hearing upon a written
determination that doing so is necessary to prevent the previously mentioned
harm to the Village.

d. The Village Manager in accordance with procedures drafted by the Village
Attorney shall conduct hearings.

e. Within [ten (10)] business days after the close of the hearing, the Village Manager
shall issue a written decision that shall constitute a final determination for
purposes ofjudicial review pursuant to the Illinois Administrative Review Law,
735 ILCS 5/3-101 e/ seq., as amended. In reaching a decision, the Village
Manager may consider any of the following:

i. The nature of the violation;
ii. The nature and extent of the harm caused by the licensee’s action or

failure to act;
iii. The factual situation and circumstances surrounding the violation;
iv. Whether or not the action or failure to act was willful;
v. The record of the licensee with respect to violations.

f. A licensee whose license has been revoked shall not be eligible to reapply for a
new license for one year.

7. OCCUPANCY OF DWELLING UNITS.

7



a. No dwelling unit shall be occupied by more than one (1) type (A), type (B), or
type (C) family, as defined in “Definitions,” of this Ordinance except as
hereinafter provided:

b. Upon written application to the Zoning Administrator}, certification or approval
shall be issued for occupancy for a dwelling unit by a type (D) family in all
districts where dwelling units are allowed, except the RI and R2 districts,
provided that the application establishes that the occupancy conforms with the
definition of a type (D) family. The members of a type (D) family household shall
not keep or store more than one (1) motor vehicle for each such dwelling unit or
for each off-street parking space lawfully existing in connection with such
dwelling unit, whichever is greater. Certification would be revoked at any time
the occupancy or off-street parking no longer conforms to the definition of a type
(D) family, or if a request for current records is not answered so as to establish
that the type of ownership complies with the definition of a type (D) family.

c. No dwelling unit which contains less than one thousand (1,000) square feet of
floor area shall be used to provide living quarters for roomers, servants or
permanent guest. Where the floor area of a dwelling unit exceeds one thousand
(1,000) square feet and the family occupying the dwelling unit is a type (A) or
type (B) family then the dwelling unit may also be used for living quarters for not
more than two (2) employees, roomers, or permanent guests, provided that the
living quarters located within the dwelling unit as a physically integral part.

8



Short-Term Vacation Rentals Impact Neighborhoods
Commercial Investors Create Housing Shortages Through AirBnB
DY JULIANN[ COUCH

scityNet#orkcoin

Placing a rarely used bedroom or house
in the short-term rental market through a
service like AirBnB can be a good way for
a homeowner to bring in extra cash. It can
also help communities that are short on
hotel space make room for more visitors,
which benefits the local economy.

But too much of a good thing can be,
well, too much, resulting in some painful
unintended consequences. Sometimes the
tipping point is the entrance of commercial
investors into the scenario.

That’s why community leaders in cities large
and small, from Boston to Miami Beach, from the Rocky Mountains
to the Pacific Northwest. are figuring out how to keep commercial
investors from dominating the short-term Tental market. So far, they
are passing regulations, and considering ways to enforce them. But
they must use finesse as they protect the rights of local property
owners while managing commercial investors and the growing online
rental market platforms, such as AirBnB.

Colleen Fitzpatrick of the Fenway Community Development Corporation
in Boston has seen her city negotiate the unintended results of a
burgeoning short-term rental market. She says that around 2013,
her community noticed investors buying up properties that had been
rental housing and using them for very brief overnight stays, basically
turning them into hotels.

People were coming and going from housing units that had previously
been occupied long term. In other words, people used to know who
their neighbors were, but increasingly, the “neighbors’ were only there
for a lew nights It also meant that folks who would normally have
stable, affordable long-term rental options were being priced out of
the increasingly expensive rental market.

Residents approached the city with concerns about this turnover, and
what it meant for neighborhood stability. Fitzpatrick says the city’s
Irspectional Services department sent out a letter to rental property
owners that they were looking into what seemed to be a trend, but that
theyweren’t planning to enforce any regulations. Although it may have
been an unintended consequence, “that gave people permissions to
keep going,’ Fitzpatrick believes.

Then about a year ago, Fitzpatrick says, a working group formed
among the Alliances of Downtown Civic Organizations, Local 26 of
the Boston Hotel and Food Service union, the Chinese Progressive
Association and others. The labor organization was primarily
concerned about housing for their workers, but also that by cutting
into hotel business, workers’ jobs were at risk, Together, these groups
held a forum with community and elected officals and presented their
findings about commercial investors taking over the rental market.
Fitzpatrick said when this issue was first raised, she was surprised
to learn about the extent and depth of the problem and believes city
officials might have experienced that same surprise,

“Once the research was presented, elected officials were moved at
that meeting to do something about it,” she said.

The advocacy groups presented to the city research from a study by
UMass specific to Boston about how AirBnB and other online rental
platforms were affecting rent costs. Others in the community did their
own research, sleuthing out prices of rental properties by following up
with advertisements they found online. In some cases, they discovered,
the per-room rate was $200-$300 a night. That nightfy rate would add
up for a person with a long-term lease. Money was being made and
that made it difficult for small community organizers to win the baffle.

“People came to this cause with different concerns: quality of life, or
displacement, or upward pressure on rent, We made it a housing issue
working with tenant groups and union members.” Fitzpatrick said they
knew that investors and rental hosts were going to push back against
regulation because they had something to lose. “The coalition was
outgunned because they are volunteer community groups, and don’t
employ full time policy directors devoted to the cause,” Fitzpatrick
said.

She said the group was never against the “one host, one home” model
of short-term renting in which a typical homeowner could rent out
a mom for a short period of time. But Boston had reached the point
where even corporate short-stays were no longer rented for a month or
two as intended, but rather for just a few nights and for higher rates.

In June 2018, the Boston City Council passed an ordinance eliminating
investor unit listings and regulating other short-term residential
rentals. It established a registration and data collection system
that will allow the city to more effectively monitor the impacts of
this industry on its residential housing supply. “At the same time, it
continues to allow owner-occupants to rent out extra rooms on AirBnB

CII [ E[N nTzpATRIcx
isa tonimiiiiity organizer
or Fen way Cemmunfly
Development Corporation
In Boston.

[9)



Sustainable City Network Magazine

for as many as 365 days, or their entire home while on vacation,” the

ordinance explains.

Fitzpatrick says that having data about who owns properties and how

they are managed as rentals is a very important piece of the puzzle

for city leaders to possess. It would be helpful, but not practical, to

access the databases of companies such as AirBnB, which has a very
sophisticated registration platform. Without access to information,

it can be difficult for communities to move from registration to

enforcement.

One group pleased with the outcome in Boston

is the American Hotel & I.odging Association

(AIILA). Its president and CEO Xatherine lugar
said in a press release that the hotel industiy
applauds the mayor and city council in Boston
for their “decisive leadership to safeguard

Boston residents and communities from the

negative impact of short-term rentals.” She
called the new rules common sense to ‘protect

true home-sharers while reining in commercial

operators who are tearing apart the fabric of
Boston communities, reducing affordable

housing options and diminishing the quality
neighborhoods.”

Common sense rules can go a long way, but some cities, including

Miami Beach, Fla., find they struggle to enforce those regulations,

According to a story on CNBC, Miami Beach is one of the most

popular resort cities for short-term rentals, The city took the step

of considering neighborhd character, looking at which areas

were mostly residential and which were most appealing to tourists.

They now allow short-term rentals in only certain areas. In order to

advertise on rental platforms, homeowners have to submit an affidavit

to the city that their property lies in an area approved for short-term

rentals and that they have obtained a business tax receipt and resort

tax account. If they are part cia condo association, they need to prove

that short-term rentals are allowed there.

The Miami Beach Code Compliance office defines short-term rentals

as, “rental periods of less than six months and one day.” But, these

are prohibiled in all single-family homes and in many multi-family

hDusing buildings in Miami Beach. “It a building or unit is found to be

operating a short-term rental illegally, tenants/visitors will be evicted

and fines, starting at $20,000, will apply to the owner.”

In Denver, Cole., taxation is the focus. In recent years the city imposed

regulations and taxes on short-term rentals, of which 1,672 were

previously unregulated. The Denver city auditor found that regulations

generated nearly $1.1 million in revenue in the first eight months of

2017. Investigation by the Denver Post found that as of December

2017, that city had a short-term rental registration rate better than

70 percent, which exceeds the rates in other cities that have started

regulating it. The audit estimated the licenses issued accounted for

only about 63 percent of the short-term rentals being offered through

online services.

And in nearby Estes Park, residents found they were increasingly

sharing their community with tourists, rather than long—term
neighbors. Ihat’s partly because fewer people live in small remote

mountain towns with long harsh winters, and partly because so many

of the four million annual visitors to nearby Rocky Mountain National
Park need a place to stay. The Larimer
County Commissioners and Estes Park
Board of Trustees cooperated on short—term
vacation rental regulations in order to have a
consistent policy in place across the city and
county.

The ordinance requires all vacation rental
owners to register. The application fee for
vacation rentals within Estes Park is $200
plus $50 per bedrooii. The ordinance caps
the number of rentals within residential
zones, with a limit of eight people per home.

A review process is required for any owner who wishes to house nine or

more people. In order to ensure complaints are resolved quickly, a local

representative or property manager must be designated. Employee

housing, attainable housing and accessory dwelling units cannot be

registered as vacation rentals.

Walla Walla, Wash., is in the southeast part of the state, near the

Cascade Mountains. A cty of about 30,000, it is in an increasingly

popular district for winery tourism. Partially for that reason, the

community has experienced a rapid increase in the number of short-

term housing rentals. In November 2017, the city banned absentee-

owner properties for use as short—term rentals. Ihis ordinance was

contested, according to the Union-Bulletin newspaper.

Some in town took a pro-business position, wanting to encourage

tourists to enhance economic development They also wanted to allow

for short-term rentals for newcomers or those considering a move to

the area. Others disliked disruption in residential neighborhoods. They

also nDted the harm to the city’s hotels and motels, which are zoned,

taxed and must meet codes for salety and other requirements.

The new ordinance does not allow new short—term rentals whose
owners inhabit them for fewer than 275 days per calendar year and

rent them out for up to 29 days at a time. Property owners faced a

short compliance window of just a few weeks to register their rentals

as businesses and show that they paid applicable taxes while
operating their rentals. Many people were unable to meet that quick

turnaround, resulting in confusion,

“Once the research
was presented. elected

officials were moved
at that meeting to do
something about it.”

of life in residential

[10]



$BESIOFJsCdyNetnrk.com

Colleen Fitzpatrick of the Boston CDC has some wards of advke for
communities grappling with sharp, sudden increases in short-term
rental housing. She notes that for many people, a rental unit is
an investment unit, pail of the basket of ways individuals make a
living. Communities that decide to regulate these businesses need
to consider what is fair, but at the same time, watch for “loopholes,”
Fitzpatrick says.

“Stop the displacement of renters and the upward effects on rent,”
said Fitzpatrick, Get to know what your rental vacancy rate is. When
it is down to 3 percent it is hard to find an apartment. Try to get that
number up.”.

“What helps renters the most is having housing stock to rent, not
tied up with short term stays,” she says. She suggests communities
get renter advocacy groups involved, as well as social and civic
organizations, in order to take action.

r 1idcrtGFrd

S:: -‘:;rN *.‘1.cS94jactc4r
I v a .1 i —carq,r”fJ’P

( H



 

 
 
 
Date: December 7, 2018 
To: Community Development Committee   
From: Paula J. Wallrich, Director of Community Development 
Subject: Change of Use/Owner Policy 
 
This memo addresses Trustee Glotz’s request to review policy regarding Change of Use/Owner 
Application protocol.  Below please find some background on the code references providing the 
Village with authority for current protocol, information on Village policy for enforcement of these 
regulations, status of current applications and summary of comparative community code and 
enforcement policies. 
 
Background  
The Village is charged with the responsibility “To promote and protect the public health, safety, 
morals, convenience, and general welfare of the people” and through the adoption and enforcement 
of the Comprehensive Building Code of the Village of Tinley Park and the Zoning Ordinance Village 
staff has created an application and protocol for the review of Change of Use and Change of Owner 
Applications (Attachment 1- Complete Application Packet). The application packet provides all 
necessary information for anyone interested in leasing or purchasing Commercial, Industrial or 
Multi-Family Space/Property. The packet addresses  the opportunity for possible economic 
incentives, the application fee ($30), inspections and basic items the inspection will cover, 
inspection report, the possible requirement of a building permit,  and the need for a final 
inspection prior to issuance of a Certificate of  Occupancy. There is also information in the packet 
for a business license (note: not all businesses require a license) and sign permits. The packet is 
very thorough and has been available to our residents since 2003 with more recent revisions made 
in 2014.  The code requirements have been in place for over 20 years. 
 
Section 104 (B.) of the Comprehensive Building Code (Certificate of Occupancy) outlines the need 
for the Change of Use/ Owner Inspection: 
 
Existing Buildings - Use Group or Occupant Changes : 

With the exception of single-family and multi -family dwellings, when the ownership, or when 
the occupant of all or part of a building changes, or when the use of all or part of a 
building changes from one use group to another, said building or part thereof in relation 
to which the change in occupant or use has occurred, shall not be occupied or used until a 
Certificate of Occupancy has been issued by the Building Official. (1) 

 

1. Ordinance 2011-O-028 provided for Change of Owner Inspections for Multi-Family uses (common areas)  as well. 

 

 

   

Memo 



 

As a mature community Tinley Park’s Change of Use/Ownership (CU/O) inspections provide a 
means for the Village to address code deficiencies common to aging building stock. As building 
codes evolve over time there is minimal opportunity to gain access into an existing building that 
was built under different building codes. There are a variety of ways communities like Tinley Park 
can address this issue. Some will enforce CU/O inspections, while others use transfer stamps, 
Point-of-Sale inspections or business registration inspections.  Whatever the means, there is legal 
precedence to require such inspections.  In Mann v. Calumet City, 588 F.3d 949 (7th Cir. 2009) the 
court upheld the validity of their Point-of-Sale inspection ordinance, holding that the ordinance 
was rationally related to the legitimate governmental interest of ensuring compliance with city 
ordinances designed to protect public health and safety.  
 
Discussion 
As outlined in the CU/O application packet there is a protocol staff follows in processing these 
applications.  Within 5 business days of receipt of a CU/O application, the application is reviewed 
for zoning compliance and an inspection is scheduled for all building (building, plumbing, 
electrical) and fire inspections.  Within 7 business days of the inspection a letter is sent to the 
applicant outlining any code deficiencies.  Within the body of the letter information is provided as 
to any deficiencies and the necessary remedies.  The Applicant is instructed to contact the Building 
Department within 7 days to discuss the schedule for repair and/or the necessity of permits. The 
majority of the time staff will receive a response and permits are either applied for or if no permit 
is required an inspection is scheduled. A very small number of applicants will decide not to move 
forward with their project, and the application is closed. Either way a discussion occurs as to how 
to move forward in bringing the property into compliance.  Occupancy permits are not issued until 
there is compliance; however for non-life safety issues or where the Fire Department has issued 
extensions, a temporary Certificate of Occupancy (CO) may be issued.  Business licenses are not 
issued until a permanent CO is issued. (Please note that not all businesses require a business 
license.) 
 
Since taking on the responsibilities of Community Development Director (2016) I have worked with 
Building staff to bring closure to any outstanding CU/O applications, i.e. applications that did not 
result in a CO. While there are still some outstanding applications the total has been significantly 
reduced due to the diligence of the Building Clerks.   Since 2016 we have adopted new protocols 
that help us increase the likelihood of closure. The Village has received slightly over 300 
applications for CU/O since 2016; currently only 21 CU/O applications that have not been issued a 
final Certificate of Occupancy (three of these have received a temporary CO). Of the 21outstanding 
applications, there are 15 that are occupied and are in the process of bringing their properties into 
compliance and are required to apply for building permit. Eight of these have not yet filed for a 
building permit however all but one of these were 2018 applications—four of which applied within 
the last 5 months.  Three of the 21 applications had existing businesses that remain operational; 
there are six cases that are unoccupied properties that are waiting to submit plans. None of the 
occupied properties without a CO have significant life safety issues.  
 
In surveying similar communities it appears the issues Tinley Park deals with are commonplace.  
In all three communities surveyed (Oak Forest, Lockport and Lemont) any change of owner triggers 
an inspection and a CO is not issued unless all non-compliant code issues are addressed. Oak 



 

Forest will give up to 18 months to comply and has shut down businesses for non-compliance; 
Lemont will allow up to 12 months for expensive issues; and Lockport did not state a specific 
deadline but they will not issue an occupancy permit until they obtain compliance. Tinley Park has 
allowed up to 5 years for fire protection service compliance and will issue a temporary CO until 
they reach compliance.   
 
Concerns 
The process is not perfect.  While the intent of the ordinance is to require a property owner to 
comply with code, often this responsibility falls to the buyer or tenant.  The Village has struggled 
with this over the years and has attempted to inform commercial property owners of their 
responsibility for compliance by sending out letters, posting information on the village website 
and meeting with realtors to recommend they make this information known to their clients. 
Unfortunately we are often working with an unsuspecting buyer or tenant that was unaware of 
the additional costs related to bringing their new property or lease space up to code.  In these 
situations staff works closely with the applicant as much as possible to obtain compliance while 
ensuring life safety issues are remedied. 
 
Under the previous administration as well as the current administration, Staff has been instructed 
to maintain a “business friendly” approach to their day-to-activities. Whether it be customer service, 
code enforcement or economic development, the culture of the Village Hall is to try as best we can 
to maintain positive relations with our business community.  While this is the environment in which 
we operate, code enforcement certainly has its challenges in making sure we are complying with 
Village Code in an accurate and consistent manner and still maintain a positive reputation with the 
business community.  It is important to note that there is an appeal process outlined in Section 
100 L. (Right of  Appeal) in the Building Code. 
 
Recommendation 
While the number of outstanding CU/O applications is not significant (6% over the last three years) 
there appears to be opportunity for improvement especially with respect to impact on small 
businesses.  The level of enforcement varies in the communities surveyed and it continues to be 
a challenge to obtain compliance without stricter enforcement of the CO process.  The question is 
what is the true cost of enforcement on economic development? The majority of the more 
significant cost issues appear to relate to Fire Protection Systems.  Lemont has adopted an 
ordinance that exempts the downtown district from required sprinkler systems.  While this may 
have eliminated many of the complaints for code compliance, Staff questions the greater impact 
on life safety since the majority of the buildings in the downtown are older and represent the 
largest concern for life safety.  
 
The Committee may wish to commission a committee of staff and business owners to address the 
unique needs of special areas such as the downtown area and review current code issues that 
impact businesses. 
 
The Board may also wish to discuss the conditions under which an inspection is required.  
Currently all change of owner and use situations require an inspection.  This would include transfer 
of ownership within a family or with a re-organization of trust.  Our Village attorney has 



 

determined that regardless of how the land is transferred or to whom—it still constitutes a change 
of ownership. The Board may however identify exceptions to these requirements under certain 
conditions such as transfers within the immediate family.  
 
 



 

 

PUBLIC 
COMMENT 

 



 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 


	121118-Committee Notice
	121118 Comm. Dev Agenda
	091118 Commdeve Minutes
	Item 3 - Short Term Rental 
	Item 4 - Change of Use/Owner Policy
	Public  Comment
	Adjournment



